
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting and receive information about 
it.  However, in order to enable the meeting to be held in a Covid-secure manner, places for 
members of the public are limited. Please email democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk or 
call (0191) 643 5320. 
 

 

 
 

 

Culture and Leisure  
Sub-Committee 

 
Monday, 21 June 2021 
 
Tuesday, 29 June 2021 Chamber - Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business 
Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at 6.00 pm. (Due to Covid precautions 
anyone wishing to attend should first notify the contact officer). 
 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 
To receive any apologies for absence from the meeting 
 

 

2.   Appointment of Substitute Members 
 
To be notified of the appointment of any Substitute Members 
 

 

3.   To Receive any Declarations of Interest and Notification of any 
Dispensations Granted 
 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable 
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that 
interest. 
 
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation in relation to any 
registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have been granted to 
you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda. 
 
Please complete the Declarations of Interests card available at the 
meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer before leaving 
the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2020. 
 

5 - 8 

5.   Cultural Services Recovery Planning 
 
To present the Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee with an overview 
regarding Covid recovery planning in Cultural Services. 

9 - 10 

Public Document Pack

mailto:democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk


Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 

 

 
6.   Draft Work Programme Report 2021-22 

 
The purpose of this report is to enable the Culture and Leisure Sub-
Committee to consider the formulation of its work programme 2021/22. 
 

11 - 14 

 
Circulation overleaf …



 

 
 

Members of the Culture and Leisure Sub Committee  
 

Councillor Ken Barrie Councillor Gary Bell 
Councillor Linda Bell Councillor Liam Adam Bones 
Councillor Julie Cruddas (Chair) Councillor Cath Davis 
Councillor Margaret Hall (Deputy Chair) Councillor Joe Kirwin 
Councillor Gary Madden Councillor Jim Montague 
Councillor Andy Newman Councillor Jane Shaw 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee 

 
28 January 2020 

 
Present:  Councillor C Davis (Chair) 

Councillors J Allan, L Bell, K A Clark, J Cruddas, J Kirwin,  
M Madden, P McIntyre, A Newman, P Oliver and S Phillips   

 
Apologies:  Councillor K Lee  

 
C&L12/20 Substitute Members 
  
There were no substitute members reported. 
 
C&L13/20 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations reported. 
 
C&L14/20 Minutes  

 
Resolved that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 1 October 2019 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair. 
 
C&L15/20  North Tyneside Council Play Site Strategy 2020-2030  
 
The Sub-Committee received a report which introduced the North Tyneside Council Draft 
Play Site Strategy 2020-2030, was presented by officers from the Local Environment and 
Horticultural and Parks Services.  
 
Play was an essential part of every child’s life and contributed to their development, mental 
and physical health, wellbeing and fitness.  The purpose of the Play Site Strategy was to 
set out the approach for the management and investment of play sites.  
 
The Play Site Strategy supported the Authority’s ‘Our North Tyneside Plan’ priorities, 
providing a great place to live, work and visit, and the ‘Green Space Strategy 2015’. 
Importantly, the strategy sets out priorities for ongoing play site investment and provision, 
with the purpose of providing communities in North Tyneside with a network of high-quality 
play areas.  North Tyneside Council currently provided 57 outdoor play facilities across the 
borough.  Included within the play facilities were traditional play areas, wheeled sports 
areas, multi-use games areas, teen shelters, water play sites and the Adventure 
Playground located in Shiremoor.  Play site categories and standards were based on 
nationally recognised guidelines with five objectives; Quantity, Quality, Accessibility, Safety 
and inspections of play sites, and Management, as set out in the strategy.   
 
In 2007, North Tyneside Council received £5.5m of funding to improve play equipment 
across the borough bringing it up to national standards.  The then Play Partnership which 
consisted of the voluntary and community sector, and North Tyneside Council, had 
undertaken extensive participation and consultation activities throughout 2005 and 2006. 
Local provision was examined in detail and a variety of initiatives were undertaken with 
children and young people across the Borough.  The initiatives included mapping and a 
quality audit of local provision, along with the hosting of focus groups including children, 
carers and young people. Since the study there had been significant improvements in play 
sites. 
 Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee 
 

28 January 2020 

The previous Play Strategy ‘Things to do, places to hang out’ ensured that North Tyneside 
Council, and its partners through the Play Partnership, worked toward the Authority’s key 
priority reflected in the Council Plan and the then Children and Young People’s Plan. This 
included providing a whole range of opportunities for personal and social development, 
recreational and cultural activity, creative self-expression and independent play. The 
outcomes that were achieved relevant to play sites were described in the 2020-2030 draft 
strategy.        
 
Since the initial strategy was adopted by the Authority, many improvements and other 
changes had taken place.  The main changes to occur were: 
 

 Many sites had been improved raising standards and increasing accessibility and 
quality; 

 Previous investments had enabled the Authority to deliver many of the 2007 
Strategy actions points, resulting in larger and better equipped play sites; 

 Capital funding opportunities had changed: S106 residential sites, as other funding 
reduced; and 

 In 2015, the Authority adopted the Green Space Strategy, which underlined the 
importance of play in a child’s development.  The strategy also stated the current 
approach in setting standards for the provision of equipped play based on quality, 
quantity and accessibility.           

 
The Authority’s current play site provision included 56 outdoor play facilities and 1 staffed 
Adventure Playground located in Shiremoor. Included within outdoor facilities were traditional 
play areas; 7 wheeled sports areas (skate parks and a BMX pump track); 18 multi use games 
areas; 7 teen shelters and 3 water play sites.  Shiremoor Adventure Playground was unique  
in its play offer and was the only staffed Adventure Playground in the North-East of 
England. It was built with Play Pathfinder funding in 2010 and its aim was to attract visitors 
from across the whole borough. 

 
North Tyneside had developed categories for its play facilities based on the nationally 
recognised guidelines of the 6 Acre Standard which was created by Fields in Trust (FIT), 
formerly the National Playing Fields Association (NPFA) as detailed in Appendix 1 of the 
draft strategy.  Each category gives a catchment area for individual play sites, which was 
illustrated in the North Tyneside Play Site Coverage map at Appendix 2. The catchment 
area increases based on the facilities offered, recognising that people would travel further to 
use larger better equipped sites.  A detailed breakdown of individual play sites and their 
designation was provided in the North Tyneside Play Area Categories table at Appendix 3. 
North Tyneside’s coverage was now regarded as good with only a few gaps in play 
provision remaining.  
 
In order to meet the high standards of play site provision across the borough an Action Plan  
was included in the draft play site strategy to achieve those standards.   
 
The sub-committee was invited to put forward comments on the draft Strategy as part of 
the engagement and consultation process.  These included the following comments with 
responses (italics) from officers, as appropriate: -  
 

 Play sites across the borough that were currently in poor repair and plans for their 
maintenance:  A five-year plan had been developed by the play site service, which 
identified those sites which require investment.  It was proposed that sites would 
receive investment through a combination of the play site maintenance budget, as 
part of any future funding opportunities and through section 106 agreements, where 
appropriate. 
 Page 6



Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee 
 

28 January 2020 

 Anti-social behaviour in terms of teens to mitigate issues arising: Youth shelters 
were provided in some play areas and parks across the borough.  The Authority 
worked closely with the Police to tackle any ASB. 
 

 Developers contributions to locate land for future use and to ensure that quality 
standards were met: The Authority’s Play Site Team worked closely with Planning 
in relation to any new play site provision identified as part of a new development. 
The team influenced as much as possible, the standard and specification of the 
play sites to be developed.  

 

 Sites on the map awaiting development e.g. Merlin Place, Longbenton:  The 
Authority was currently involved in consultation with the community in this area and 
other sites across the borough. 
 

 Determining which play sites were needed in an area in relation to young children 
e.g. Newcastle Wall in Killingworth when parking at the lakes as well as anti-social 
behaviour from those kids from the area:  The Play Site Strategy identified gaps in 
provision across the borough. In relation to this area, Killingworth Lakeside play site 
was the nearest site.  
 

 The option to use school sites rather than community play sites:  Ofsted had 
produced guidelines on evening use of school sites to protect the schools interests 
e.g. dog walkers/anti-social behaviour:   The Authority had explored this in the past 
but there had been some reluctance from schools, due to the potential to attract 
anti-social behaviour issues on their site.  However, the Authority would continue to 
look at any future opportunities for accessing play sites in school grounds, where 
appropriate. 
 

 Funding for open space use e.g. Castle Park which was a topic for building houses 
and the play site strategy: S106 agreement funding had been requested for this 
area and other areas across the borough.   
 

 ‘Friends of Groups’ support in fund raising and awareness in terms of community 
requirements: The Authority worked with a number of friends of groups across the 
borough and welcomed their positive involvement, contributions and support.    
 

 Asset transfers in relation to community play park facilities: It was explained that 
there hadn’t been much interest from communities to take on responsibility for play 
sites, due to the health and safety requirements associated with inspecting and 
managing the sites.  
 

 Funding opportunities for additional smaller play sites in the borough e.g. St Mary’s:  
The Play Site Strategy had identified gaps in provision along the coast particularly 
where there were high levels of footfall, which included the area next to St Mary’s 
Lighthouse.  This location would be considered as part of any future funding 
opportunities for play site provision.   
 

 Sport England funding opportunities e.g. Churchill Playing Fields:  Officers were in 
discussions with Sport England regarding potential funding opportunities for 
appropriate locations across the borough.     
 

 The Play Site Strategy for North Tyneside Council should be integral to the needs 
of its users and the Authority needed to be creative in securing future funding for 
play site development.     

Page 7



Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee 
 

28 January 2020 

 
The Chair, on behalf of the Sub-Committee, thanked officers for their presentation and 
welcomed the opportunity to comment of the draft North Tyneside Council Play Site 
Strategy.  

 
Agreed that the report and presentation on the draft North Tyneside Council Play Site 
Strategy 2020-2030 be noted; and the comments from the sub-committee on the approach 
to the management and investment of play sites be received. 
 

C&L16/20 Chair’s announcement  
 
In response to a member’s request for further information regarding the Sub-Committee’s 
work programme, the Chair commented that further to the recent Scrutiny Chairs and 
Deputies meeting and pre-agenda discussions, Members were encouraged to put forward 
additional items not already identified and, if appropriate, a particular topic for investigation 
(study group) for her attention via the Democratic Services Officer. 
 

 

Page 8



 

 
Author:  Steve Bishop 

 
Tel: 07979401875 

 
Service:  Environment Housing and Leisure 

 

Wards affected:  All 
 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to give the Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee an overview 

of the presentation regarding planning for recovery in Cultural Services. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Sub-committee is recommended to note the report and comment on the 

presentation.  
 
3. Details 
 
3.1 The period since the first lockdown in March 2020, through to the current easing of 

restrictions on service delivery, has been especially challenging for Cultural Services.  
Major sections of the service have not been able to operate for much of the past 15 
months, the Playhouse Whitley Bay for example having been dark for the entire period. 

 
3.2 Other services have been able to operate for limited periods when lockdown restrictions 

have been eased, allowing for some access to museum facilities at Segedunum and 
Stephenson Steam Railway, as well as key visitor attractions such as St. Mary’s 
Lighthouse.  

 
3.3 The Events programme has been significantly, hit with the postponement for two 

consecutive years of the Mouth of the Tyne Festival, and only limited events activity 
being permitted. Library provision has functioned on a limited basis in line with the 
permitted national guidance, with Order and Collect provision and limited People’s 
Network access. 

 
3.4 The presentation will cover what the service has been able to deliver over the period of 

the pandemic and current planning for a return to business as usual. 
 
4. Background Information 
 

The following documents have been used in the compilation of this report: 
- Government guidance on restrictions during the pandemic 

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 

 
Meeting: Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee 
 

Date: 29 June 2021 

Title: Cultural Services Recovery Planning 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Author:  Yvonne Harrison 

 
Tel: (0191) 643 5320 

 
Service:  Law and Governance 

 

Wards affected:  All 
 

 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to enable the Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee to 

consider the formulation of its work programme 2021/22. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Sub-committee is recommended to formulate and agree a work programme for 

2021/22 and identify any topics relevant to the remit of the sub-committee that could be 
included in the work programme as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 

 
3. Details 
 
3.1 The sub-committee is invited to give consideration to determining its work programme for 

the year ahead. In doing so members may wish to take into account the following factors. 
 
3.2 The sub-committee is one of a number of overview and scrutiny sub-committees. The 

role of overview and scrutiny is described in the Council’s Constitution as follows: 
 
 “Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development involves councillors of all political parties, as 

leaders of their communities, examining the delivery of services and influencing decision 
makers to ensure that they meet the needs, and improve the lives, of people in North 
Tyneside. 
 
It does this by: 
a)  reviewing and challenging the impact of decisions and actions taken by the Elected 

Mayor, Cabinet and partner organisations; 
b)  carrying out investigations into services and policy areas of interest and concern to 

communities in North Tyneside; 
c)  involving communities in its work and reflecting their views and concerns; and 
d)  supporting and assisting the Elected Mayor, Cabinet and partner organisations in the 

formulation of their future plans, strategies and their decision making by making 
evidence based recommendations to them on how services can be improved.” 

 
3.3 The Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee has responsibility to perform these roles in 

relation to the following areas: 

 
Meeting: Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee 
 

Date: 29 June 2021 

Title: Work Programme 2021/22 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 Active North Tyneside 

 Arts  

 Libraries and Customer First Centres 

 Tourism 

 Festivals and Events 

 Heritage 

 Indoor Sports Facilities 

 Outdoor Sports Facilities 

 Museums 
 
3.4 To ensure that the work programme is effective it is suggested that when evaluating 

topics for inclusion in the work programme the following criteria should be considered: 

 Is it timely? 

 Will it duplicate any other work ongoing within the Council or the North of Tyne 
Combined Authority scrutiny work programme? 

 Will it add value/contribute to policy development? 
 
3.5 The sub-committee has the option of establishing sub-groups (of around 
 4/5 members) to carry out in-depth investigations. The sub-groups operate in a more 

informal way and can consult with a wide range of witnesses in various settings, often 
over a shorter period of time. When dealing with a specific topic, this focused way of 
working is often more productive than trying to achieve the same in a formal committee 
setting. Whilst more than one topic can be prioritised across the municipal year, only one 
sub-group can be established at any one time due to resourcing restraints.  

 
3.6 A proposed draft outline work programme for 2021/22 is attached. Members of the sub-

committee are invited to raise any other topics relevant to the remit of the sub-committee 
that they think should be included in the work programme.  Additional topics raised will be 
scheduled accordingly in consultation with the Chair and the Deputy Chair. 

 
4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 - Outline Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee work programme 2021/22. 
 
5. Background Information 
 

The following documents have been used in the compilation of this report: 
- Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee minutes and work programme 2019/20 
 
 
 

Page 12



APPENDIX A 

 
Draft Culture and Leisure sub-committee work programme 2021/22 
 
Chair:   Councillor Julie Cruddas   
Deputy Chair: Councillor Margaret Hall 
Democratic Services Officer: Yvonne Harrison 
 

Agenda Item Purpose Lead 
Officer(s) 

Outcome/Issues 

29 June 2021    

Cultural Services Covid recovery 
planning and Services overview 
 

To provide an update on the Authority's Cultural Services 
Covid recovery planning and an overview of the related 
service provision 
 

Steve Bishop  

Work programme 2021/22 To determine the sub-committee's work programme for the 
year ahead.  Items already identified by Members and officers 
will be presented, with the opportunity for the sub-committee 
to raise any additional topics for potential consideration. 

Yvonne 
Harrison 

 

31 August 2021     

Sport & Leisure Services Covid 
recovery planning and Services 
overview 
 

To provide an update on the Authority's Sport & Leisure 
Services Covid recovery planning and an overview of the 
related service provision 
 

Paul Youlden 
 

 

Tourism and Events activity  To provide an overview on the Authority’s delivery of tourism 
and events activity across the borough.  
 

Pete Warne  

2 November 2021    

Cultural Strategy  To provide details of a consultation to be undertaken on the 
Cultural Strategy 
 

Steve Bishop  

    

Cont…  

P
age 13



Agenda Item Purpose Lead 
Officer(s) 

Outcome/Issues 

4 January 2022     

    

    

1 March 2022    

    

    

 
 
 
In-depth investigations 

Name of sub-group Membership Brief outline of scope and 
timescale 
 

Lead 
officer(s) 

Progress 

     

 

P
age 14


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Cultural Services Recovery Planning
	6 Draft Work Programme Report 2021-22
	DRAFT Work Programme 2021-22 Appendix A


